St. Francis-Emory Healthcare
Residency Program

PROGRAM DIRECTORS
DR. ANUPA RAI- Internal Medicine
DR. HARJESUS SANDHU- Psychiatry

ST. FRANCIS EMORY-HEALTHCARE | 2122 Manchester Expressway, Columbus GA, 31094

1




Table of Contents:

St. Francis —EMOry HRAITNCAre ......... ..ot ettt e s e e e sbbbe e e sbaeeebabeeebaeessnees 3

Information about COlUMDBUS, GEOIZIA ........cc.uiiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt et e e ebeeeseeeaeaeesaeeseeennnas 4
EMPIOYEE BENETFITS . ..oooiiiii bbb 5
GIME Program BENEFItS .........oc.oo ittt b e e bt bs e b e e se e e bt e beebe e beeaeebeen s 9
Vacation and Leave of ADSENCE POIICY . .oooiiiiimiiiiii i e 10

Sample Contract



St. Francis — Emory Healthcare

St. Francis-Emory Healthcare is committed each day to providing the highest quality care in
west Georgia and east Alabama. With 376 beds on two campuses, more than 2,500 associates,
and 300 physicians, we offer a full range of inpatient, outpatient, and emergency room services,
including the only open-heart surgery program in Columbus and the Chattahoochee Valley.

HISTORY

World War Il had recently ended. The world was returning to normal, but the people of Columbus realized things
were changing. The city was growing and the need for healthcare was rapidly advancing. With the guidance,
energy and forethought of city leaders, the hospital groundbreaking took place on October 23, 1948. A little more
than a year later, on March 13, 1950, a five-story, red brick building was dedicated. Georgia Governor Herman
Talmadge, the Auxiliary Bishop of Savannah-Atlanta, the Sisters of St. Francis, and more than 1,000 others
turned out to christen the new hospital named for the Sisters’ patron saint — St. Francis of Assisi, who devoted
himself to care for the sick and poor. Celebrating our 75" Anniversary this year, St. Francis-Emory remains what
the Columbus Ledger described as “A dream of mercy shared by people of all faiths” when the hospital was
dedicated.

A NEW ERA OF HEALTHCARE

St. Francis-Emory Healthcare is part of ScionHealth, one of the nation’s largest hospital systems whose purpose
is to “empower the hands that heal” to do what they do best. We accomplish this purpose as we provide skilled,
compassionate care to the many friends, families and neighbors in the communities we serve who come through
our doors seeking better health
and well-being. And, we enhance

our ability to deliver outstanding patient . OUR REACH =
outcomes and experiences by living St.Francis I -
our company’s three Values that L
Empower: Value Every Voice, Show BRDRY HEalTHC R °
Courage, and Lean Into New Ideas. =
SERVICES &~ %

By embracing these values of putting . *
our people first, showing great iyl it b b Lo
courage, and thinking differently ik et e
about how we serve our patients and ohavioralard Mers|
communities — and modeling the il S
related behaviors — our caregivers C Ben ittt i
are empowered to do what they do * Cancer Care ¢
beSt * Cardiac Services

o Cardiopulmonary o

Rehabilitation ©

ScionHealth’s national, community * Critcal Care Units
hospital footprint encompasses 17 e s
acute care campuses with a total of A
more than 2,100 beds. With + Imaging Services
hospitals spanning 12 states, located = iniEbnih sy Ben ks
in smaller towns, ScionHealth [ e Z;Ma“gemem
community hospitals stretch from oo Senices
South Carolina to western Idaho. * Orthopacdic Services

¢ Outpatient Pharmacy
We prOVide personal, . ;th:br:lti‘:ir:n&Physwcat Therapy
compassionate care in the expected o b Sy
and unexpected moments of life. Our * Sleep Disorders
patients are often our team [ o ement e
members’ friends, family or e
neighbors, and we are committed to « Women's Services
their health — from birth through :lVJ“r:::yCafe&vaa"’a”cc“e'

maturity, from orthopedic care to
emergencies. 3



Information about Columbus, Georgia

Located 90 miles southwest of Atlanta on the Chattahoochee River, the Greater Columbus Region is a
place like none other, surpassing the needs and expectations of its residents while fueling progress at
the same time. It is a place where tri-cities — one in Georgia, two in Alabama — face each other in
partnership across the river, and across the state line. It is a part of the Metropolitan area comprised of
Columbus-Auburn-Opelika. St. Francis-Emory Healthcare is in the Heart of Columbus just 90 minutes
southwest of Atlanta, approximately 45 minutes east of Auburn, Ala., and 80 minutes east of
Montgomery, Ala.

Home to the longest urban whitewater rafting course in the world constructed on the Chattahoochee
River, the area boasts numerous parks including Flat Rock Park; a favorite spot for picnicking, disc golf,
mountain-biking, and cross-country running along with much more. Standing Boy Creek State Park is
1,579 acres of fun including swimming, boating, hunting, camping, and great hiking trails. Within an
hour's drive, you can get to some of the best hunting and fishing spots in the Southern United States.
This is an area of the country where nature lovers will feel right at home.




© ScionHealth 680 South Fourth St

2025 BENEFITS PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

Healthcare Plan

Spousal
Advantage Plan

HSA

Flexible Spending
Accounts (FSA)

Healthy Steps
Wellness

Dental
Vision

Life Insurance

Supplemental Life
Insurance

Short Term
Disability

Long Term
Disability

ScionHealth offers several medical plan options from which you can choose.

In addition, by participating in a healthcare plan, you have access to the following:
e Quantum Health'

¢ Multi-Faceted Wellness Program

e Employee Assistance Program

e Telemedicine Program through Teladoc?

¢ Hinge Health?

e  Oshi Health®

e Midi®

The Spousal advantage Plan offers employees who have access to ACA compliant
group medical and prescription drug coverage through their spouse, 100% coverage with
$0 out of pocket for eligible medical expenses.

An HSA allows employees who participate in an HSA-eligible plan to set aside pre- tax
dollars to pay for eligible healthcare, dental and vision expenses.

You can save money on your healthcare and/or dependent day care expenses by
using a tax-advantaged Flexible Spending Account (FSA). The money you contribute
to these accounts is withheld from your paycheck before it is taxed. You withdraw it
tax-free when you pay for eligible expenses, which reduce your annual taxable income.

The Healthy Steps Wellness program is a multi-faceted approach to well-being
comprised of a variety of health and wellness activities. By participating in the program,
you may qualify for the Healthy Rewards Rate.

ScionHealth offers a choice of three comprehensive dental options.
ScionHealth offers a choice of two vision options.

ScionHealth provides basic life and AD&D insurance equal to one times annual base
salary for full-time employees.

Employees may elect additional life insurance equal to one to five times their annual
base salary. Dependent life insurance is also available for Spouse/Partner and children.

ScionHealth offers short-term disability coverage providing a safety net in the event you
are unable to work due to a serious illness or injury.

ScionHealth offers long-term disability coverage providing a safety net in the event you
are unable to work due to an extended serious illness or injury.



©ScionHealth

PTO

401(k) Plan

Purchasing
Power

Voluntary
Benefits
Plans

Tuition
Assistance

The HOPE
Fund

Service
Awards

IMPACT

680 South Fourth St.
Louisville, KY 40202

ScionHealth offers a flexible Paid Time Off (PTO) program that allows eligible employees to
use the time for whatever employee's needs are.

ScionHealth offers a 401(k) retirement savings plan that allows employees to contribute pre-
tax and post-tax dollars through payroll deduction. There is a discretionary company match.

ScionHealth provides an option to purchase items and services, including electronics,
furniture, tires, or a vacation package, with payments through payroll deductions.

Legal Plan

Critical lliness Insurance
Accident Insurance
Permanent Life Insurance
Hospital Indemnity Insurance
Auto & Home Insurance
Identity Theft Protection

Pet Insurance
Transit/Community Benefits

ScionHealth supports and encourages employees to take advantage of educational
opportunities with Tuition Reimbursement and the Purdue Global grant Tuition Advancement
Payback Plan. Email ISR Ry for tuition reimbursement or

[ P ey for program information.

ScionHealth’s Employee Disaster Relief program, Helping Others Persevere during
Emergencies. Visit AT ISR N Cinta=nj for program details.

ScionHealth recognizes and celebrates our team members’ commitment and dedication. As
the employee meets a service milestone, an award plague is sent to the employees’ facility,
and a gift brochure is sent to the employee’s home.

The IMPACT program is a company-sponsored rewards program designed to incentivize,
recognize, and reward team members across our organization.

+ Achieve: Compensation related benefits to enable employees to achieve financial health
e Adventure: Lifestyle related benefits that promote work life integration
 Spotlight: Recognition related benefits that foster a culture of connection and celebration

Support: Other offerings to meet employees where they are


mailto:hrhelp@scionhealth.com
mailto:tuitionadvancement@scionhealth.com
mailto:tuitionadvancement@scionhealth.com
https://www.scionhealthforme.com/

© ScionHealth 680 South Fourth S

Mentoring

Leadership
Coaching and
Development

Virta

Employee
Resource
Groups

Hinge Health?®
Oshi Health?®

Midi®

RethinkCare

Mentoring is available for all employees through the Employee Resources Groups. Six
month mentoring cohorts are started throughout the year. Attend an Employee
Resource Group to get more details about joining the next cohort.

ScionHealth offers monthly virtual training/development sessions for current leaders.
Topics include Emotional Intelligence, Building Trust & Psychological Safety,
ScionHealth Culture and Values, etc. Leadership Coaching is available on a limited
basis and coaching cohorts start every 6 months. Contact your HR leader for more
details on Leadership Coaching and Development opportunities.

Virta is a guided nutrition program to lower blood sugar, reverse diabetes*, and get off
unwanted medications—available at $0 cost to employees. Backed by science and
trusted by thousands, Virta is personalized and flexible to your lifestyle, learn to eat
foods that are right for you. No injections, fad diets, or extra gym visits necessary.

Get ongoing, expert support from Virta, including:

¢+ One-on-one health coach and medical provider

¢ Digital weight scale and connected meter that syncs with your phone
¢ Personalized nutrition plan backed by clinical research

To learn more, visit www.virtahealth.com/join/scionhealth

*Reversal on Virta is defined by reaching HbA1c below 6.5% without the use of
diabetes medications beyond metformin. Diabetes and related issues can return if
lifestyle changes are not maintained.

ScionHealth is proud to offer 7 Employee Resources Groups which give all employees
an opportunity to connect. All employee resource groups are open to everyone.

Empower -supports women and allies

Emerge -supports Black employees and allies

Embrace -supports LGBTQ+ employees and allies

Honor -supports Veterans, families, and allies

Unidos -supports Hispanic employees and allies

Ohana -supports Asian American/Pacific Islander and allies
YOUNIQUE -supports neurodiverse employees, families, and allies

To sign up click the link below:

ScionHealth ERGs

Innovative, personalized physical therapy to help overcome back, knee, hip and neck pain
from the comfort of home.

Comprehensive digestive care from a team of experts who help build a personalized care
plan.

Affordable, accessible perimenopause and menopause support

RethinkCare provides support for parents with all their needs — from helping with the
7


https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/ScionHealthERGSignup

© ScionHealth S0 St TSt 5

challenges of typical childhood issues to more direct support of parents with
neurodiverse and autistic children. In addition, team members have access to personal,
one-on-one coaching sessions with RethinkCare’s board-certified behavioral analysts
that can be scheduled in 48 hours or less.

Quantum Advocacy, navigation resource to assist employees with managing health and
Health’ healthcare cost. Care Coordinators can help find in-network providers, evaluate
treatment options or handle billing issues.

Employee The EAP is available to provide support and help with stressful life events, such as
Assistance mental health, emotional issues, family issues and addiction and recovery, 24 hours a

Program (EAP) | d2/seven days a week.

LifeBalance Customizable discount program

LifeBalance Program Information

Apollo Affinity  Discount program

Program Apollo Affinity Program

1 - Employees enrolled in Kaiser will utilize Kaiser’s advocacy support
2 - Community Hospital employees can utilize virtual care but not through Teladoc
3 - Employees enrolled in Kaiser are excluded from these programs

**Benefits are reviewed yearly and subject to change.
**Benefits begin the first day of the following month 30 days after hire.


https://scionhealth.lifebalanceprogram.com/
https://portfolio.apollo.com/s/apollo-affinity-program

GME Program Benefits

e 5750 in educational allowance per academic year
e Step 3 reimbursed (if completed in first year, on first attempt)
e (2) scheduled Wellness Day per academic year (reimbursed by hospital for up to $30 for activity
chosen)
e 6-day virtual board review course provided at no cost in 3™ year (Awesome Board Review)
o Internal Medicine Program
e 4-year subscription to Beat the Boards course review
o Psychiatry Program
e Conference assistance for elected First Authors- up to $1500
o ACP National- Internal Medicine
o APA National- Psychiatry
e 20 workdays of PTO per academic year
¢ Columbus Road Runners membership discount pricing
e \Various benefits and discounts offered through our Human Resources dept. including discounted
gym membership
e Tiered salary structure that increases with each PGY level
e Reimbursement for the Resident Training Permit
e MKSAP subscription paid for by the program
e Yale Module paid for by the program
e Access to Mercer’s School of Medicine library
e Company provided laptop and cell phone for use during residency
e 5250 in meal voucher tickets for each month per resident for food in the cafeteria
e One SFH lab coat and one SFH jacket provided during orientation
e 6 yearly in-person counseling sessions offered through GME/Employee Assistance Program and
partnership with Pastoral Institute.

**Program benefits are subject to change



Vacation and Leave of Absence Policy

Policy

Residents are provided with a minimum of six weeks of approved medical, parental, and caregiver leave(s) of absence
for qualifying reasons that are consistent with applicable laws at least once and at any time during an ACGME-
accredited program, starting the day the resident is required to report.

Procedure

Time off includes time off for holidays, vacation, iliness, personal days, and other absences. Time off provides the
resident with at least the equivalent of 100 percent of their salary for the first six weeks of the first approved medical,
parental, or caregiver leave(s) of absence taken; and provides the resident with a minimum of one week of paid time
off reserved for use outside of the first six weeks of the first approved medical, parental, or caregiver leave(s) of
absence taken.

Requests for time off must be made one (1) month prior to the date(s) desired and returned to the Program
Coordinator. Emergencies will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Every effort will be made to accommodate last-
minute requests for job/residency interviews and family emergencies.

There is no provision that allows residents to work double shifts or weekends to trade days. In order for time off to be
approved, any and all duties or scheduled call times must be covered. If a resident is scheduled for a call shift during the
time in which he/she would like to take time off, he/she will be responsible for finding another resident to switch call
shifts. All changes in call shifts must be approved by the Program Director in advance.

Time off will only be granted when all of the resident’s logs (clinical and educational work hours, clinic logs,
evaluations, etc.) are up-to-date.

At the discretion of the Program Director, time off may not be allowed during certain rotations or certain dates of the
Academic year.

Residents are required to use the allotted time off when unavailable for work on a Leave of Absence unless the resident
is receiving worker’s compensation, short-term disability or long-term disability payments.

Note that all resident contracts are for a one-year period unless otherwise written. While it is true that any time off
beyond the 20 days in any academic year may necessitate extending the resident’s time to completion, it is not
guaranteed that another contract for the next academic year will be offered. There are situations where there will not

be a position for a resident following an extended leave of absence. Every effort will be made to keep residents on
schedule.

Bereavement
Time off includes time off for holidays, vacation, illness, personal days, and other absences, including bereavement.

Jury Duty
Procedure

10



If a resident receives a notice that he/she is to report for jury duty, he/she is required to notify the residency Program
Director immediately so that coverage can be arranged. St. Francis will pay the resident his/her regular salary for the
length of time in which he/she has required jury duty. If court is not in session or if a resident is dismissed early, he/she
is expected to report to work as soon as possible after being dismissed, unless otherwise mandated by state law. Upon
returning to work, the resident must submit written proof of jury duty to the Program Director in order to be
reimbursed.

Leaves of Absence

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Policy

In accordance with the “Family and Medical Leave Act,” the St. Francis leave of absence policy supports

up to twelve (12) work weeks of unpaid leave during a 12-month period for the following circumstances:

a For the birth of a child;

b. For the placement of a child for adoption or foster care;

Gl To care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition;

d Because of a serious health condition that causes the resident to be unable to perform the

essential functions of his/her job;

e. For the care of a “Covered Service Member” with serious injury or illness incurred in the line of duty that
rendered the service member medically unfit to perform his/her duties; or

15 For any “Qualifying Exigency” arising out of the fact that a spouse, child, or parent of the resident is on

active duty of has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty in the Armed Forces in support of a
contingency operation.

Procedure
The 12-month period is measured forward from the date the resident’s first FMLA leave begins. To be
eligible for FMLA, the resident must:
a. Have been employed at St. Francis for at least twelve (12) months; and
b. Have actually worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period immediately preceding the

request for leave.

Residents must apply for this leave and it must be approved by Human Resources. Forms are available in the St. Francis
Human Resources office.

If eligible for FMLA, FMLA must be applied for concurrently with any leave due to maternity or paternity, short-term or
long-term disability, and leave pursuant to the policy section “Extended Leave of Absence.”

Leave under this provision only protects the resident’s job (i.e., job security). It does not provide any income guarantee
or entitlement. Time taken off for leave may extend the training period as necessary to comply with the specialty
board requirements for time in training.

While on FMLA, Residents are entitled to up to twelve weeks of St. Francis-subsidized benefits only. See Human
Resources policies on PolicyStat via the St. Francis Intranet for further information.

11



Maternity/Paternity Leave
Procedure

It is the Resident's responsibility to notify the Program Director as soon as possible in advance of anticipated utilization of
a maternity/paternity leave. Time taken off for a maternity/paternity leave may extend the training period, as necessary,
to comply with specialty board requirements for time spent in training. The department to which the Resident is assigned
must approve any leave of absence. If eligible for FMLA, FMLA must be applied for at the same time a maternity/paternity
leave is requested.

Extended Leave of Absence
Policy

Residents with extraordinary and long-term personal or family tragedies may be granted extended leave without pay
and without loss of previously accepted residency position or status for periods of up to one year in the following
circumstances:

Terminal illness.

Complications of pregnancy that threaten maternal or fetal life.

Other —devastating conditions or personal tragedies from which eventual recovery and/or
return to regular employment may be reasonably expected.

a
b. Permanent disability
c
d.

Procedure

If extended leave is requested, the residency Program Director will provide the Resident written information
regarding its potential impact on:

a. Requirements for successful program completion.

b. Requirements of specialty board for time spent in training.

The Program Director will also provide written information regarding availability of alternative accommaodations, such

as reduced hours, night-call accommodations, modified rotation schedules and part-time scheduling.

Eligibility for extended leave will be determined on a case-by-case basis by the Residency Program Directors and
DIO, in consultation with HR.

If extended leave or other accommodations are granted, the Residency Program Director will prepare written

documentation of the circumstances and conditions of these accommodations, as well as the necessary
requirements for the Resident to return to full active status.

Military Reserves or National Guard Leaves of Absence
Policy

Residents who serve in U.S. military organizations or state military groups such as the National Guard may take the
necessary time off to fulfill this obligation and will retain all of their legal rights for continued employment under
existing laws.

Additional Benefit & Leave Considerations

a. Effect of Leave for Satisfying Completion of Program:

12



i Time taken off for any leave may extend the training period, as necessary, to meet specialty
board requirements for time spent in training. Residents should check with their Program Director to
make sure they are not in jeopardy of needing to extend their training and, therefore, changing plans
for a job or fellowship opportunity.

ii. Residents are not automatically guaranteed re-entry into the training program and

therefore should discuss future arrangements with their Program Director prior to commencing a

leave of absence.

iii. A resident remains eligible for health benefits during the time he/she is on unpaid leave. During
the time the resident is not receiving pay, the usual payroll deduction obviously cannot be made. The
resident, therefore, is responsible for direct payment of benefits costs. A check or the appropriate
amount must be received by the benefits office before the 15th of each month to assure uninterrupted
coverage.

iv. A resident requiring further leave after FMLA has expired, or a resident exercising any of the
other forms of unpaid leave, assumes full cost of any insurance coverage.

v. Any leave of any kind must be coordinated through Human Resources and notification to the
Graduate Medical Education Office is required.

b. Unscheduled Absence

i. Absence from work without notifying the Department of Medical Education will be considered a voluntary
resignation. If the resident’s preceptor (attending physician) is taking time off, the resident is still considered to be on-
duty. The resident must report or notify the Residency Office of his/her attending physician’s absence and his/her
availability for didactics and other activities of the program. If the resident does not notify the residency office before
such a situation, this will be considered a violation of disciplinary standards.

13



RESIDENT PHYSICIAN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

COVER PAGE
Date of Agreement: Date of Last Signature “Effective Date”:
Duration of the Resident’s
“Resident”: “Term”: participation in the Program
“Employer”: St. Francis Health, LLC d/b/a St. Francis |Emory Healthcare

“Graduate Medical Education Program Specialty”

“Resident Address”: “Employer Address”: 2122 Manchester Expressway
Columbus, Georgia 31904

Attn: Chief Executive Officer
PGY 1: $58,801.60 per year (prorated) until such time g§ Resident has fulfilled the
“Base Salary and requirements for advancement to PGY2;
Program Year”: PGY2: $60,819.20 per year (prorated) until such tfme agResident has fulfilled the
requirements for advancement to PGY3;
PGY3: $63,015.68 per year (prorated) until su as Resident has fulfilled the
requirements for graduation
PGY4: $66,315.79 per year (prorated)&1 ch'time as Resident has fulfilled the

requirements for graduation

I The capitalized terms in any attached exhibits not oth
such terms within quotations set forth on this Cové

agwise¥defined, shall have the definition of

Exhibit
A Stangfa
Conad
B pplemental Benefits
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employer an ident have duly reviewed and executed this Agreement as of
the dates set out beneath their respectiye sig res, and hereby certify the following:
1) This Agreement may be e Wne or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which togethe constitute one and the same instrument;
2) The compensation arr tis established at fair market value;
3) This Agreement s S all prior agreements, contracts and understandings, whether written or
otherwise, between rties relating to the subject matter hereof and does not condition the payment
or the arrange the volume or value of any referrals or other business generated between the

parties; an

4) Upon the @ ate of this Agreement, the parties agree to ensure that no payments are made and no
services ren d beyond the terms of this Agreement, or the terms of other Employer approved
agreements between the parties.

EMPLOYER: St. Francis Health, LLC d/b/a RESIDENT:
St. Francis | Emory Healthcare

Chief Executive Officer

Date Date

14




EXHIBIT A

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Resident Physician Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is hereby effective as of the
Effective Date, and is by and between Employer and Resident.

WHEREAS, Employer has established an accredited clinical training program in graduate medical
education (the “Program”); and

WHEREAS, Resident holds the permit and qualifications needed to participate in the Program as a
graduate trainee in the state listed in the Employer Address; and

WHEREAS, Employer desires to employ Resident, and Resident desires
to participate in the Program pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agree

ith shipervised graduate medical
e working relationship of the
arties is important at the onset of

WHEREAS, the parties mutually agree that quality healthcare, along
education, is a priority of the parties; that there is a need for flexibility j
parties; and that an understanding of the rights and responsibilities
and throughout their relationship.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual coyenawts, obligations, and agreements set forth
herein, and with intent to be legally bound hereby, the partie&hereby agree as follows:

L. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION AND TERM OF AGRE

1.1 Term of the Agreement. Unless it is {frminated sooner in accordance with the terms hereof and

applicable GME rules and regulati s Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date
and shall remain in full forcﬁnd effect for the Term or the successful conclusion of the

current Program Year. Res Il remain at any assigned level of training (PGY) until
Resident has completedw- ments prior to advancement to the next PGY.

1.2 Graduate Medical Ed n Program Specialty. As defined on Cover Page.

1. COMPENSATION AND E

2.1 Compensatio iglent shall receive the annual Base Salary as defined on the Cover Page,
payable jM™accQrdance with the terms in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated by
referen rein.

2.2 Benefits. Resident shall receive the benefits mandated by law; including, but not limited to,
workmen’s compensation coverage, as well as additional benefits as may be implemented
from time to time according to Employer’s policies.

2.3 Professional Malpractice Liability Insurance. Resident shall receive professional malpractice
liability insurance coverage for Employer-related activities that are provided by Resident within
the scope of the responsibilities pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. Resident will
continue to be covered for Employer-related activities Resident provided while active in the
Program, even after Resident completes and/or leaves the Program and Employer. Resident may
request a copy of the coverage information from the Employer.

15




OBLIGATIONS OF EMPLOYER

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

- 5

3.6

3.7

may have gp R
OBLIGATIONS O%ENT

Environment of Training. Employer shall provide an educational program in graduate medical
education and graduate clinical training that meets the current standards of the ACGME,
including GME policies that address pertinent aspects of resident development, clinical work
hours, moonlighting, and supervision.

Resident Involvement. Employer shall facilitate involvement of Resident in appropriate
Employer committees or councils addressing patient care issues.

Designation of Director. Employer shall designate a director (“Program Director”) and other
Program staff to serve as person or persons responsible for the implementation of this
Agreement and for the general supervision of Resident.

evaluation of Resident’s
valugtions may be made more
ounseling, and corrective

Evaluation. Employer shall provide to Resident a semi-annual
work and performance by Program Director or designee.
frequently and may include objective testing methods, d
action plans.

Compensation and Benefits. Employer shall provid with compensation and benefits
as described in Section Il.

Grievance and Due Process Procedures. Employ&gor the Program shall maintain a policy that
shall provide Resident with a process for submMing and addressing grievances at the Program and
Program sponsor level. A grievance sha @ ed as a claim or dispute by Resident against
Employer concerning the interpretatiga, Ohgpptication of Resident Agreement, or written policies
of Employer affecting Resident in t@ram, the treatment of Resident in the Program, the
evaluation of Resident’s performanc e in the Program, and the termination of the Resident
from the Program prior to co jon of training.

ation of Effect on Leave. Resident is informed and
acknowledges that a n3#raining after a leave of absence may be needed for successful
completion of Pro Qr;d/or Board Certification requirements. The amount of sick leave,
vacation, leave of ab wor disability time that will prolong the training time for Resident shall be
determined by irector and the requirements of the program and/or certifying Board. In
such instanc gram Director or the GME Office will notify Resident of the effect such leave
dent’s training.

Making Up Leave Time a

4.1

Employer Bylaws, Rules, Regulations and Policies. Resident shall comply with the bylaws, rules,
regulations, and policies of Employer at all times during the term of this agreement and any
amendments thereto, all as may be adopted or approved from time to time by the Governing
Council, Medical Staff, Board of Trustees, or Administration of Employer, and/or any other
duly authorized source, including but not limited to:

(a) Employer Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations;

(b) All Program and other policies, rules, and regulations of Employer; and

16




4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

(c) Medical Staff Standards of Accreditation of Hospitals.

Employer’s Mission. Resident shall accept and respect the mission of Employer and its values
of service excellence, and to abide by Employer’s business conduct principles and the behavioral
expectations articulated in Employer policies.

Training Requirements. Resident shall fulfill the educational and clinical requirements of the
graduate medical education training for the Program specified above, and complete the training
cycles within the time allotted. Except for personal emergency medical situations, absence from
Program for any reason must be approved in advance by Program Director. Following any
personal medical absence, Resident shall complete a Return-to-Work Evaluation according to
Employer’s Policy.

Patient Care. Resident shall provide safe, effective, and compassifinate patient care whenever
assigned or assumed.

Employer and GME Policies. Resident shall be subject to E@er’s employment and GME
policies and procedures unless specified to the contrary in eement.

State License. Resident shall obtain and maintain riate medical license required for|

the participation in the Program in the state identj
reflect status as “pending” or “active,” depe
Resident shall notify Employer in writing i
revoked, or otherwise restricted. Resid
required by the Employer.

e Employer Address. Such license may
whether Resident’s training has begun.
ely if any such licensure is not renewed, is
st also maintain appropriate certifications as

Immigration Requirements. Residgnt stkll comply, obtain, and maintain all legal requirements
of the immigration and qualification ements for International Medical School Graduates, iff
applicable.

Documentation. Reside propriately and timely document care rendered as needed by

continuity of care an
the history and physic
Rules and Regulati

purposes, and to prepare, dictate and authenticate reports of
d discharge summary in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws and

be otherwise subject to penalties that may include suspension,
termination, or receive a certificate at completion of Program. All such reports, records

and supporti ents belong to the Employer.
sident shall follow the schedule established by Program with the understanding

Assigngé%.
that hours vary depending upon medical needs of the clinical rotation(s) to which Resident is

assigned. Resident must also follow the assigned clinic schedule and clinical rotation schedule.

4.10 Employment Physical. Resident shall participate in a physical examination at the Employee Health

Office, or designated organization on or prior to commencement of work under this Agreement,
and have the results of said examination verify that Resident has no conditions that would
preclude Resident from working in a drug-free workplace or from performing the duties and
obligations of Program. Should Resident fail any aspect of the examination, this agreement shall
be void.

17




4.11 Accommodations/Special Needs. Resident shall notify Program Director immediately iff
accommodations are needed to perform any of the essential job functions of the Program.
Accommodation requests will be reviewed by the Program Director and Human Resources.

4.12 Malpractice Claims. Resident shall cooperate and participate in the defense of any claims arising
out of actions taken during residency training and other activities at or assigned by Employer.
This obligation continues after Resident has left Program and is not limited to claims in which
Resident had direct involvement or knowledge.

4.13 Courtesy and Respect. Resident shall demonstrate courtesy and respect to patients, families,
nursing personnel, and other personnel associated with Employer.

4.14 HIPAA. Resident shall comply with provisions set forth by the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) and endorsed by Emgloyer in conjunction with
guidelines set by the ACGME.

4.15 Medical Malpractice. Resident must meet all requirementsgverage under Employer’s
professional liability insurance policy and other applicab ility insurance policies.

growth with guidance from their Program Dir t includes meeting core competency
requirements defined by the ACGME for the Rag
demonstrate ability to assume graded andgi
demonstrated by meeting ACGME core
Furthermore, Resident shall participat

4.16 Development of Program Study. Resident shall develop % program of study and professional
r

der®s respective PGY level. Resident must alsol
2wsing responsibility for patient care which is
atencies for the Resident’s respective PGY level.
afe, effective, high quality patient care under
fvancement and responsibility.

supervision, commensurate with the Q
4.17 Compliance. Resident’s actions while training program must be provided in compliance
with: (i) the standards of TheOint Commission; (ii) all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and rules; an e rules and policies of Employer, including, without]
limitation bylaws, polici nd regulations of Employer and Employer’s Medical Staff,
to time.

as may be amended <2

4.18 Cooperation. Resident ully cooperate with the Program and Employer in coordinating and
completing resi iew committees and ACGME accreditation submissions and activities,
including the% d timely completion of patient medical records, charts, reports, procedurej

logs, and duity Rgur logging.

4.19 Quality Imp%nt and Risk Management Activities. Resident agrees to participate in and cooperate|
with Quality Improvement/Risk Management activities as directed by the Program Director or Risk
Management. Resident must report immediately to the Risk Manager any inquiry by any private o]
government attorney or investigator, or any inquiry by any member of the press. The Resident
agrees not to communicate with any inquiring attorney or investigator or any members of the press
except merely to refer such attorneys and investigators to the Employer’s Risk Manager and to refer
the press to the Employer’s Marketing Department.

4.20 Board Exam Eligibility. If Resident’s successfully completes all requirements of the Program as
determined by the Program, Resident is eligible to sit for the specialty board examination in
the Graduate Medical Education Program Specialty.

18




V.

VL.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT (“Moonlighting”)

5.1

Resident shall comply with Employer’s Moonlighting Policy, including but not limited to the “Duty
Hour” requirements, a copy of which will be provided upon request. Any Resident with either a
temporary license or any type of visa is not permitted to undertake patient care activities or other
employment outside Program. Other Residents may be allowed outside employment only if prior
written approval from Program Director is obtained, and this may be withdrawn or modified if
Program Director, in the Program Director’s sole and absolute discretion, believes such outside
activity is interfering with assigned duties or obligations. The approval and extent of acceptable
off-duty employment is wholly within the discretion of the Program Director. The Employer-
provided professional liability insurance coverage does not include any outside employment, and
a condition of Program Director’s approval of such activity may include proof of the existence of

liability coverage.
TERMINATION &

6.1

Cause for Termination. If Resident breaches any provisio fC)greement or any applicable
law, regulation, rule, or policy, the Employer shall iscretion to terminate this
Agreement and Resident’s employment.

This Agreement may also be terminated at an e Da written release by mutual consent

of the Resident and Employer. In the event ucfNermination, the Program Director shall
determine the amount of credit, if any, satisfying education requirements to be

awarded the Resident.

Employer may terminate this Agree Qtime for cause, effective upon delivery of written
notice to the Resident. Cause shall faclud}, but not be limited to, the occurrence of any of the
following events as determined by priate Employer leadership in consultation with the
Program Director and the DIO Program:

(a) Neglect of duty; i

Staff Bylaws, a
of Employe

but not limited to, violation of Employer’s Bylaws, Medical
egulations, or any policies, procedures, rules, and regulations

(b) Commis an act of misconduct, including fraud or dishonesty, determined to
rend? nt professionally unfit to practice medicine;

(c) ofgmi®nal incompetence, inability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and
sa 0 patients;

(d)  Professional incompetence, inability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and

safety to patients by reasons of use of alcohol or drugs;

(e) Resident’s failure, by omission or commission, to perform the services specified in this
Agreement or the usual and customary duties of Resident, as reasonably determined by
Resident’s Program Director, or designee; Graduate Medical Educational Committee;
and/or Employer’s Chief Executive Officer;

(f) Conduct prejudicial to the best interests of Employer, including but not limited to
violations of the Employer’s Harassment and Discrimination policies;

19




6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

(g) Failure to obtain or maintain an appropriate professional license, or debarment from
any federally funded health program;

(h) To comply, obtain, and maintain, all legal requirements of the immigration and
qualification requirements for International Medical School Graduates, if applicable;

(i) Failure to pass USMLE Step 3 or COMLEX 3 by the end of the second year of residency
training. An exception to this rule occurs if Resident holds an unrestricted license in a US
State or Territory that is approved by the Georgia State Board of Medicine for issuing a
continuing license without USMLE 3 (e.g. Puerto Rico);

() Demonstrated failure to maintain an appropriate professional attitude and behavior
toward patients and staff;

(k) Conviction of Resident of any crime punishable as a felony; o

(1) Resident’s resignation or suspension of privileges fro e ghedical staff of any hospital,
revocation or suspension of DEA registration, o ilon from participation in any
federal or state health care program.

Licensure. This agreement shall terminate auto
maintain licensure for the practice of medici
required by law, or failure to qualify for the pro
by Employer.

ti upon Resident’s failure to obtain or
bwthe State of Georgia, immigration status
sional liability insurance coverage provided

Effect of Termination. In the event o ion, and except as provided in Section 7.10, all
rights and obligations of the partigé hergunder shall cease.

Compliance with Law. If at anyfime either party reasonably believes, in good faith, based upon

the advice of competent he age counsel, that this Agreement or the performance of any
obligations under this Aggeeme iolates any state or federal law or regulation, or presents a
substantial risk of th rgrestriction of that party’s certification, license or right to (a)
participate in Medi Qedicaid, Tricare or any other governmental health care program; (b)
provide health care s; or (c) operate an acute care hospital, then that party may, upon|
written notice, ife the other party to enter into good-faith negotiations to modify this
Agreement i er that would retain as much as possible of the economic arrangements
originally or%ated by the parties without violating any applicable legal, tax, or
reimbur@ equirements. If the parties are unable to reach an agreement concerning the
modificati this Agreement within thirty (30) days after the date of the notice seeking
negotiations (or sooner, if required by law), then either party may immediately terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to the other party. The rights of the parties under this Section|
are in addition to any other termination rights they may have.

Loss of Training Program Accreditation. In the event the Employer loses its training program
Accreditation, discontinues the training program, or loses Accreditation for trainee positions during
the period of this Agreement, on the effective date of such action, the Resident shall have the
option to be released from this Agreement and shall not be prohibited from immediately entering]
another program approved by the ACGME training. Also, the Program Director shall grant the
Resident credit for that portion of the residency completed and released there from.

20




6.6

6.7

VIl. GENERAL COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS

In the event of discontinuation of the training program, the Program Director agrees that
every effort will be made to place the Resident in another appropriate program.

Notice. Resident may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to
Employer.

Appointment Length, Dismissal and Promotion. Employer’s appointment of Resident shall be
an initial term of one year. Promotion to a new PGY level is determined by the Program Director
and Clinical Competency Committee (CCC) based on resident performance and evaluation tools.
Resident must be in good standing, and performing at or above Resident’s PGY level in order to be
promoted. If, in the sole discretion of the Program Director and the CCC, Resident has successfully
fulfilled the requirements of the current PGY level, Employer shall notify Resident in writing of
Resident’s advancement to the next PGY level, and the compengation, benefits, rights, and
responsibilities associated with the next PGY level shall commence gfget forth in such notice, and
following the signatures by Employer and Resident on a new,Resid Physician Employment
Agreement for the next PGY level. Should Resident be elected Chie§j of Resident’s Program, the

Parties shall enter an Amendment reflecting the stipend asgqgia ith such election. Should the
n E

resident not meet the requirements set forth in the Resid ogram’s policies and practices
related to academic performance, patient care, prof; allsm, or other issues not listed, the
Program Director, and CCC has the discretion to dK sident from the program.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Patient Records. All records relating to g Ment treated by Resident are the property of
Employer and shall be treated as confige as required by law and shall be the property of

Employer. However, Resident shall jJf8ve ®ee€ss to such records in accordance with applicable
state and federal laws and Employ®r’s pplicies.

Agreement. All questions ¢
determined in accordance wi

ing the validity or construction of this Agreement shall be
laws of the state identified in the Employer address. This
Agreement is a person agreement, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall
be construed to p nment, in whole or in part, by Resident of any rights or
obligations under tgis Mgreement, and such assignment is expressly prohibited.

Offices and Su
Resident suc

sonnel. Employer shall provide (or arrange for the providing thereof)
services and personnel as required by the ACGME for the provision of
vices to those who receive the same.

professi%

Ownershi Amounts Paid. Resident acknowledges that all remuneration of any kind for
professional clinical services rendered by Resident within the scope of Program is and shall
remain the property of Employer. Resident hereby assigns to Employer the exclusive right to bill
for, collect and retain any and all fees, reimbursement, payments and income attributable to
services Resident renders hereunder. Under no circumstances may Resident bill any patient or
public or private third-party, reimbursement program or entity for services Resident renders
hereunder. Resident shall cooperate with and assist Employer and Employer’s agents in all billing
and collection efforts related to services Resident performs hereunder.

Noninterference with Professional Judgment. The provisions of this agreement notwithstanding,
Employer shall not impinge upon Resident’s right to make medical decisions concerning the
treatment of patients being treated by Resident, except for the oversight and supervision

21




7.6

7.7

7.8

provided by supervising physicians and faculty. Resident shall use Resident’s medical judgment|
to make decisions as to admission to such facilities as Resident, in the exercising of Resident’s
medical opinion/judgment, shall deem appropriate and in the best interests of said patients,
consistent with the utilization review and quality assurance programs established by Employer,
provided, however, that Resident agrees that Resident’s professional performance shall be
periodically reviewed to ensure compliance with this section and other pertinent sections of this
Agreement and with applicable standards of professional medical performance, and, provided
further, that Physician’s professional performance shall at all times be subject to professional
review and oversight by, Program Director, supervising physicians, faculty members, and
Employer’s Chief Medical Officer.

Disclosures. Resident acknowledges that Resident is to be employed by a highly regulated
employer, and as such that statutes, laws, rules, and/or regulations may be enacted requiring
certain disclosures of Employer and/or Resident and/or prohibi&s}ident from engaging in
certain transactions which may require Resident to disclose th mes%f relatives and/or other
entities in which Resident or family members has/have an o@p or other such interest to

tion and/or that applicable
, Reésident agrees to cooperate and
terest Policy and Code of Conduct
ny such statutes, laws, rules, and/or

assure that Employer does not engage in any prohibit
regulations are adhered to by all parties. In furtherance ther
make such disclosures as may be required by the Co

of Employer, to assure compliance by Employer#wvi
regulations.

Confidentiality. During the course of Resi ployment, Resident will acquire private
proprietary information concerning EmpiyeNs Mnances, business practices, operations, policies
and procedures, strategic plans, patie ) and related matters (collectively “Confidential
Information”). The Confidential Infgfmatign is and shall remain the sole and exclusive property
of Employer. Resident may not at alytigfe during or after the term of this Agreement, for any
reason whatsoever, with or wi#hout cause, directly or indirectly use for any purpose or disclose
or distribute to any person, ¢ rafdon, partnership, sole proprietorship, governmental agency,
organization, joint ventur%ot entity, any Confidential Information.

Resident shall not di the contents of this Agreement to any third party, except as may
be reasonably req Resident to secure advice from professional advisors or as may be
required by la t shall notify Resident’s professional advisors of the nondisclosure
greement and direct them to comply with same.

requiremen .

At all timgs, gnts treated by Resident shall be patients of Employer, not patients of Resident,
Accordin patient records and files, including medical records and x-rays, are property of]
Employer. In the event of the termination of this Agreement, all records and files shall be retained
by Employer. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, Resident will
continue to refrain from using or disclosing Confidential Information. Following termination, all
of Resident’s rights to Employer’s books or records, case stories and reports, memoranda, files,
patient lists, accounts receivable, work in progress, telephone numbers, Confidential Information
and other assets and documents relating to Employer’s operations shall cease.

Waiver. The parties agree that a waiver of a provision and/or breach or default under this
agreement shall not be construed as or operate as a waiver of the provision in the future or a

22




waiver of the right to insist upon strict adherence to all other terms hereof or as a waiver of
any subsequent breach or default.

7.9 Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall
be in writing, and shall be effective upon delivery if delivered to the addressee in person,
effective three (3) business days after mailing if mailed by certified mail, postage prepared,
return receipt requested, or effective the next business day if delivered by overnight courier
with charges prepaid, at the Resident Address and Employer Address set forth on the Cover
Page, or to such other address as either party shall have designated for notices to be given
to him or it in accordance with this Article

7.10 Survival of Terms. The parties agree that where necessary for the purpose of a provision of this
Agreement and/or to give meaning to such provision, the same shall survive the expiration
or termination of this agreement.

7.11 Arbitration. Except for disputes subject to the grievance procedurgs of Section 3.6, the parties agree
that any dispute or claim arising out of or related to this Agreem Il be settled by confidential,
final, and binding arbitration before a single arbitrator and istered by the American Health
Lawyers Association in accordance with its rules, includifg8§rbigator selection. The prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses as: %th arbitration, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, and the arbitration award may be& y judgment in any court of competent

contains all of the understandings and &g ents between them with respect to the subject
matter hereof. This Agreement s se¥ee”and replaces any and all other agreements or
contracts between the parties witfresppct to the subject matter hereof, including any such
similar Resident Physician Emplpyme reements, as of the Effective Date.

jurisdiction.
7.12 Entire Agreement. This Agreement consti I: entire agreement between the parties and

7.13 Amendment. The terms of this ment may only be amended in writing executed by each

of the parties hereto. V

7.14 Severability. The inv or unenforceability of any particular provision of the Agreement
shall not affect its o rovisions, and this Agreement shall be construed in all respects as
if such invalid o orceable provision has been omitted.

7.15 Successorshi :E Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Employer and
its succ d assigns, and it shall also be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
Resident, esident’s administrators, executors, heirs, and assigns.

7.16 Assignment. Neither Employer nor Resident may assign any rights or obligations created by this
Agreement without the express prior written consent of the other party.

23




EXHIBIT B

SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS

During the Term of the Agreement, Resident shall be entitled to the following:

&

Compensation. Employer shall pay Resident the Base Salary, which is the rate established for

Residents of like specialty. The Base Salary will be payable in bi-weekly installments in accordance
with Employer’s routine payroll procedures, less applicable deductions and withholdings.

Supplemental Benefits. Employer agrees to provide Resident with the following supplemental benefits:

I<

Individual and Family Coverage. In Employer’s Comprehensive Health Care Plan as the same may
be amended from time to time, within the limits of the plan’s the&cable coverage.
ploy

-related activities that
ities Joursuant to the provisions
mployer-related activities
ter Resident completes and or

Professional Malpractice Liability Insurance Coverage. For
are provided by Resident within the scope of the responsi
of this Agreement. Resident will continue to be cov
Resident provided while enrolled in the Program, gye
leaves Program and Employer.

Term Life Insurance. Equal to one (1) year’s Ba &y

Paid Vacation, Sick Time, and Holidays. Resi | also be provided vacation, sick, and holiday
time, including medical, parental, and cap€ aves of absence in accordance with applicable
law and computed in accordance with Em 5 Benefits Policy for Resident Physicians, and as that
policy may be amended from ti e. Resident may have time away from assigned
responsibilities with compensation agd shéll be scheduled with the approval of the appropriate
Employer Representative.

Disability Compensation. In the“gy€nt of an inability to perform duties as a Resident, Resident
may receive disability ¢ ion as provided by Employer’s Disability Insurance plan.

Leaves of Absence. nt shall also be eligible for full, partial, and unpaid leaves of absence
in accordance wj yer’s policies. Resident shall be required to make up missed training
time as required loyer’s policies and the respective specialty board requirements.

nsation. Coverage under the laws of the State of Georgia.

rvices. Resident shall be provided access to confidential counseling and other
support services available through the Employee Assistance Program.

Parking. Resident shall be provided with parking.

On-call Accommodations. Resident will be provided customary hospital lodging in a secured
area while on-call.

Meals. Resident may be provided with a meal allowance according to each program’s policy
and at the discretion of the Program Director.

24




XVii.

Scrubs and Lab Coats. In keeping with the practice at Employer, the medical staff and
Residents are provided with scrubs and lab coats and are responsible for maintaining them
in accordance with Employer’s policies and procedures.

Restrictive Covenant. Resident shall not be required to sign a non-competition guarantee.

Residency Program Closure or Reduction. Resident shall be informed of Resident Program
Reduction/Closure in accordance with the GME specified Policy.

Educational Allowance. Resident shall be eligible for the Educational Allowance according to
Program policy.

IT Support. Resident shall be issued IT equipment necessary to perform Resident’s duties as
a Resident, including a hospital-issued laptop and pager. All IT egfiipment issued to Resident
shall be and remain the property of Employer, and Resident e liable for any loss or
damage to, and failure to return, such equipment.

License Reimbursement. The direct costs of necessary m@tgallicensure and DEA licenses are

XViii.

reimbursable by the GME Office while Resident is in icfncy Program.

reimbursable for residents while in

Memberships. Memberships required by Emplgfer
Employer’s Residency Program.

Required Examinations. The Residency Pro ly covers the cost of an annual in-training
examination. Residents who complet e MLEX or USMLE Step 3 exams during their

PGY-1 training year, and pass on t " empt are eligible for 100% reimbursement of
the cost of the Step 3 exam. Doc lon of passing the exam on first attempt must be
provided to the GME Office.

Certifications. Certlflcatlon@ed by Employer may be renewed and maintained by
residents at no cost if rgnewe rough certificate programs offered at St. Francis|Emory

Healthcare. Q

25




